

Trump's bloody hands:

Estimated deaths from Trump policies in 2025

By: Choose Democracy | Published November 2025

Introduction

President Donald Trump's tenure has marked one of the most turbulent periods in U.S. history—the most destabilizing since the Civil War. Much of the mainstream press has chronicled the spectacle, yet failed to trace the full human consequences.

This report, backed by credible sources, shows that policies enacted by Trump and his regime since his inauguration in January 2025 are linked to at least **300,000 deaths worldwide**.

This figure represents a *floor*, not a ceiling. It does not attempt to account for the full scope of deaths related to capricious tariffs, gun policy, emergency response and preparedness, or every lethal policy and practice under the Trump administration. We hope someone does that accounting.

Our goal is not to catalog every instance, but to widen the lens. We aim to move past the shocking tweets, made-for-television chaos, and palace intrigue to confront a stark reality: the machinery of Trump's policy, quietly and efficiently, is killing us.

This report should serve an urgent call to allies in the media to dig deeper and tell these truths. We deserve to know the full impacts of Trump policies and what lays ahead if our country continues down this track.

In several areas—such as deep cuts to USAID—harm will compound in the years ahead if no one steps in to fill the vacuum once occupied by U.S. American aid. We note, too, the devastating rise in suicide among transgender people—suffering largely ignored while legacy media obsesses over bathrooms.

Put plainly: **policy is not abstract. It has a body count.** And by every serious measure, the toll of this administration has been staggering.

History often remembers the noise of a presidency. Justice demands we remember its casualties.

- Choose Democracy

Table of Contents

Report Summary	3
1. Immigration Detention & Border Deaths	5
2. Reproductive Health Restrictions	6
3. Public Health & COVID-19 Policy Effects	9
4. USAID & Global Health Cuts	10
5. U.S. Strikes on Small Boats in International Waters	12
6. Increased Suicides Among Transgender People	13
7. Drug, Overdose & Crime-Related Mortality	15
8. Black Unemployment & Socio-Economic Mortality	17
9. SNAP Cuts	19
10. Reduction of health insurance coverage	20
Conclusion	22

Report Summary

Policy decisions made under this Trump administration have had far-reaching and lethal consequences. The human costs span a wide spectrum and include migrants dying in detention or at the border, women and infants lost to tightening reproductive restrictions, and transgender people driven to a breaking point by the rollback of federal protections.

At home, rising uninsured rates, overdose deaths and food insecurity reflect a steady unraveling of public health and social safety nets. Abroad, the collapse of U.S. global aid programs has left millions without access to life-saving care. Together, these developments paint a grim picture of how swiftly shifts in policy can translate into preventable loss of life on a massive scale. And unless these trajectories change, experts warn that the next decade could see millions more deaths worldwide, driven by the continued erosion of health systems, humanitarian aid, and basic social protections.

Based on available data and modeled effects, between 303,800 and 431,442 **people worldwide** likely died in 2025 as a result of policy decisions enacted or enforced by the Trump administration. A summary of this data is provided on the following page in 'Table 1'.

Projections

As a direct or indirect result of policy decisions made since Trump was inaugurated in January 2025, millions of people are expected to die over the next ten years. These include deaths from rollbacks of Medicaid expansion and ACA subsidies, from cuts to SNAP and USAID, and from hardships as a result of Trump imposed tariffs.

If current domestic and global policy trajectories remain unchanged:

• Domestic: Analysts project continued excess mortality in the

- range of 50,000–55,000 Americans per year as a result of changes in SNAP and in the rollbacks of Medicaid expansion and ACA subsidies.
- Global: The Lancet projections indicate approximately 2–2.5 million preventable deaths per year through 2030, scaling to over 14 million total from USAID reductions alone.

Table 1: Death Estimates for 2025 by Category

The table below offers a summary of both conservative and high death estimates by category for the year 2025, detailed in depth with citations in the following sections.

Category	Conservative Estimate	Higher Estimate
ICE detention deaths	19	22 +
Border / migrant crossing deaths	35	100's
Maternal + infant deaths from reproductive health restrictions	678	1000's
Public health and Covid 19	1000's	40,000
USAID / foreign-aid health cuts (HIV, malaria, TB, nutrition)	300,000	332,553
U.S. strikes on small boats (international waters)	61	61
Increased suicides among transgender people	1,800	4,000 +
Drug / overdose / crime-related excess mortality from enforcement or economic policy shifts	1,200	5,000
Deaths linked to rising Black unemployment (economic-mortality correlation)	100s	1000s
SNAP cuts	0	6,200
Removal of ACA subsidies and changes to Medicaid	0	42,000
Subtotal	304,893	430,942

1. Immigration Detention & Border Deaths

ICE Detention Deaths

A total of 22 people died in ICE custody during fiscal year 2025 (19 of these deaths occurring in 9 months following Trump's inauguration), making it the deadliest year for immigration detention since 2004. Causes include medical neglect, suicides, violence, and underlying health conditions. The number of detainees has increased, and concerns have been raised about medical care and oversight in detention facilities. While advocacy groups note under-reporting and deaths after release, official statistics for 2025 have not yet been audited or compared to previous years, so a definitive spike tied to new policies has not been confirmed. [PHR, Guardian, El Pais, Marshall Project]

Border Crossings and Migrant Deaths

As of Oct 23, 11 deaths along the U.S. Mexico border have been reported since the start of 2025, while humanitarian groups estimate closer to 100 migrant deaths. [No More Deaths; ACLU's CBP Fatal Encounters tracker] The true death toll is almost certainly higher, however, due to publishing lags, sector rollups, and recovery-date vs. death-date issues. A precise, border-wide total is unavailable right now.

Policy Shifts and Their Impact

The Trump administration's 2025 immigration policies have included large enforcement build-ups, increased detention capacity, and the reinstatement of the "Remain in Mexico" (MPP) program, which requires non-Mexican asylum seekers to wait in Mexico for their cases. [Department of Homeland Security; Reuters] These policies have been criticized for exposing migrants to violence and pushing them toward more dangerous crossing routes. Evidence from past years shows that deterrence policies often shift crossings to riskier

areas, increasing the likelihood of deaths. However, as of now, there is no conclusive, border-wide data proving that 2025 policy changes have increased deaths compared to previous years. [AP News; Washington post]

The ICE budget for fiscal year 2025 is approximately \$28–29 billion, a massive tripling of the annual year budget compared to the prior year. This expansion is part of broader efforts to increase deportations and detention capacity. [Brennan Center]

Summary

At least 20 people died in ICE custody due to medical neglect, suicides, violence, and underlying health conditions. While there isn't hard, border-wide 2025 data as of today to prove that President Trump's 2025 policy shifts have increased deaths at the border compared with immediately prior years, there is credible evidence that tougher deterrence policies push crossings onto deadlier routes, which raises risk of deaths. More comprehensive, border-wide mortality statistics and careful analysis are needed to determine if deaths have increased because of 2025 changes. [US Immigration + Customs Enforcement; American Immigration Council; AILA]

2. Reproductive Health Restrictions

Recent research from 2025 provides clear evidence that President Donald Trump's reproductive health policies—especially abortion restrictions and healthcare funding cuts—have already resulted in hundreds of preventable deaths among adults and infants in the United States, with additional harm expected globally. [PMC. NCBI. NLM. NIH]

Infant Deaths

 A cohort study in Texas found that the 2021 Texas early abortion ban, supported by Trump appointees and policies, was associated with an unexpected increase in infant and

- neonatal deaths by hundreds in 2022, including those from congenital anomalies, suggesting unintended consequences of restrictive abortion policies. [PMC. NCBI. NLM. NIH]
- A Johns Hopkins University and Brown University—led study in JAMA (2025) estimated about 478 additional infant deaths across 14 states, including Texas, due to abortion bans following the overturn of Roe v. Wade, a process accelerated under Trump-appointed justices. These bans led to increased mortality especially among marginalized groups. [JHU]
- Policy shifts under Trump, including mass layoffs at the CDC
 Division of Reproductive Health, slowed critical data collection
 programs on maternal and infant health, impairing the ability to
 monitor and address rising infant deaths in states like
 Mississippi.

While an exact total number of infant deaths solely caused by Trump reproductive health policies is not available, research strongly indicates that these policies and related abortion restrictions have caused hundreds of additional infant deaths in the U.S. by limiting reproductive rights, access to abortion, and health care services during and after Trump's administration. [PRB]

Maternal Deaths

The exact number of people who have died specifically due to Trump reproductive health policies has not been formally quantified by government or public health agencies, but numerous documented cases and studies confirm both a significant rise in preventable maternal deaths and an increased risk in states with Trump-backed abortion bans and reproductive care restrictions.

Research from the Global Equity Policy Institute (2025) concluded that maternal mortality nearly doubled in states with abortion bans compared to states where abortion remains legal. Most sources cite specific documented cases and increasing risk rather than a precise national death toll. It is anticipated that hundreds (and likely more) additional deaths will result annually due to these policies. [PRB]

Key findings include:

- A 56% increase in maternal deaths in Texas after its total abortion ban, compared to a 21% decrease in maternal mortality in states maintaining reproductive access.
- Black mothers in states with abortion bans were 3.3 times more likely to die than white mothers in those same states.
- Stevenson et al. (2023 prediction, later confirmed in 2025 data) estimated up to 210 additional maternal deaths annually nationwide under total abortion bans.

Several Trump administration measures—both domestic and international—are directly linked to these trends:

- Expanded abortion bans at the state level, encouraged by the administration's legal and political support post-Dobbs.
- Cuts exceeding \$1 trillion in healthcare funding (H.R. 1, 2025), jeopardizing Medicaid programs that cover 41% of all U.S. births.
- Reinstatement and expansion of the Global Gag Rule, which halted aid to NGOs offering reproductive services or even counseling, worsening maternal mortality overseas.

Summary

Evidence suggests that approximately 478 infant deaths and 200–250 maternal deaths in the U.S.—and thousands more globally—are preventable outcomes of Trump's reproductive health policies. Experts project thousands of global maternal deaths due to foreign aid suspension and the Global Gag Rule. These figures highlight a reversing trend in women's and children's health progress that had improved steadily for decades before the bans were enacted.

3. Public Health & COVID-19 Policy Effects

Available evidence indicates that policy reversals under President Trump's second administration have caused a measurable rise in unnecessary illness and deaths related to COVID-19. Precise national figures are difficult to establish due to the very monitoring and reporting cuts that obscured data collection, but independent epidemiologists estimate thousands of avoidable COVID-related deaths since early 2025, primarily among unvaccinated adults and under-protected children. Modeling projections comparing CDC vaccination data with pre-2025 vaccine effectiveness trends indicate that maintaining prior vaccination and surveillance infrastructure could have prevented between 20,000 and 40,000 additional American deaths through October 2025. [NIH]

Policy Shifts and Their Impact

The Trump team reduced vaccination coverage and dismantled monitoring and reporting structures vital for pandemic response. Since early 2025, Trump's Health Secretary Robert F. Kennedy Jr. oversaw major rollbacks of COVID-19 vaccine guidance, eliminating vaccine recommendations for healthy children, teenagers, and pregnant women, and severely restricting eligibility to older adults and people with preexisting conditions. These actions contradict CDC and peer-reviewed evidence that mRNA vaccines prevented millions of deaths globally and over 2.5 million deaths in the U.S., at approximately one death averted per 5,400 doses administered. The resulting decline in vaccine uptake and confusion among the public have prompted warnings from state health officials and scientists of a resurgence of preventable COVID deaths, especially during the current 2025–2026 wave.

Concurrently, the administration eliminated more than a dozen CDC data-gathering and infectious disease monitoring programs within its first 100 days, including systems tracking deaths, vaccine side effects, and respiratory virus trends. The administration also cut over \$11 billion in public health funding, reducing staff and research capacity at the CDC, NIH, and state health departments. Analysts warn that the loss of these monitoring and reporting systems has severely hampered early outbreak detection and response, likely allowing COVID-19 and other respiratory infections to spread undetected for longer periods.

Summary

Trump's reversal of evidence-based vaccination policies, combined with dismantling disease-tracking systems, has already resulted in an estimated tens of thousands of unnecessary deaths in 2025 — a toll that experts warn could escalate without restoration of vaccination programs and public health surveillance.

4. USAID & Global Health Cuts

The Trump administration officially closed USAID on July 1, 2025, transferring remaining programs to the State Department. Prior to the cuts, the United States provided at least 38% of all humanitarian donations recorded by the United Nations, allocating \$61 billion in foreign assistance in 2024, with just over half distributed through USAID.

The Death Toll

The question of how many people have died as a result of the USAID suspension is complex, with significantly different figures emerging from modeling estimates versus documented individual cases.

Modeling estimates show hundreds of thousands to millions of deaths due to cuts in USAID funding.

Dr. Brooke Nichols, an infectious disease mathematical modeler at Boston University, created the Impact Counter dashboard to estimate deaths caused by the Trump administration's cuts to 83% of USAID grants (\$7.7 billion in resources). Her estimates, which focused on 42% of the former USAID budget, found that as of June 26, 2025, approximately 332,553 people had died worldwide, including 224,575 children. These calculations were based on WHO data on disease incidence, average treatment costs, mortality rates, and the projections of the number of patients who would lose treatment. When more specific information about remaining USAID funding became available from New York Times reporting, Nichols updated her estimates, which led the death toll figure to reduce by 12.5%. Her dashboard breaks down estimated deaths by disease, including those caused by HIV/AIDS, malaria, tuberculosis, and pneumonia. [BU]

Another modeling estimate from NPR in May 2025 indicated that the abrupt cuts to USAID meant nearly 300,000 people had died due to these cuts. Dr. Cassidy Claassen, a physician associated with the University of Maryland's medical school working on HIV prevention in Zambia, stated that Nichols's project "probably understates the impact of cuts to USAID grants" and that "her estimates give us a minimum number". [NPR]

Projected Future Deaths (Through 2030)

A comprehensive study published in *The Lancet* medical journal on June 30, 2025, analyzed data from 133 countries that received USAID assistance between 2001 and 2021. The research team from the United States, Spain, Brazil, and Mozambique estimated that:

 USAID funding had prevented 91.8 million deaths between 2001 and 2021, including 30.4 million children under five If the 83% funding cuts continue, more than 14 million additional deaths could occur by 2030, including over 4.5 million children under five—approximately 700,000 extra child deaths per year. [Lancet]

The study found that higher USAID funding levels correlated with a 15% reduction in all-cause mortality and a 32% reduction in mortality among children under five. The most significant impact was seen in deaths from HIV/AIDS (65-74% reduction), malaria (51-53% reduction), and neglected tropical diseases (50-51% reduction).

Summary

Aid organizations have warned that the actual death toll from policy changes to USAID is likely already in the hundreds of thousands based on modeling, with the potential for millions more deaths by 2030 if cuts continue.

5. U.S. Strikes on Small Boats in International Waters

As of October 29, 2025, reports indicate that at least 61 people have been killed as a result of U.S. military strikes in the Caribbean under President Donald Trump's current policies targeting alleged drug-smuggling vessels. [NYT]

Policy Shifts and Their Impact

Since early September 2025, the Trump administration has launched a series of 14 publicly acknowledged air and naval strikes in Caribbean waters, primarily off the coasts of Venezuela and Colombia. These operations have been justified by the White House as part of an expanded "war on narcoterrorism," with the administration labeling certain regional drug cartels as "terrorist organizations" to enable the use of military force.

In a clear indication that these strikes and the associated death toll will continue, Trump said when asked if he felt bad about the strikes, "The only way you can't feel bad about it is you realize that... every time you see that happen, you're saving 25,000 American lives... Yes, we do. We have legal authority, right? We're allowed to do that. It's in international waters. If we don't do it, we're going to lose hundreds of thousands of people." (October 22 press conference).

Human rights and legal advocacy groups—including CIVIC, the ACLU, and Amnesty International—have condemned the strikes as unlawful extrajudicial killings and called for Congress to halt the operations. Lawmakers from both parties have demanded transparency regarding the intelligence and legality of these actions.

At the time of writing, the U.S. now has a force of more than 10,000 troops, warships, and aircraft in and around the Caribbean, a clear military escalation in the region.

Summary

At least 61 people are confirmed dead from U.S. strikes in the Caribbean linked to Trump administration policies as of October 2025, with ongoing debate over how many were civilians versus alleged narcotics traffickers.

6. Increased Suicides Among Transgender People

Since the Trump administration's rollback of federal protections for transgender Americans in healthcare, education, and anti-discrimination enforcement, suicide rates and mental health crises among transgender people—especially youth—have markedly increased according to multiple studies and reports.

Data from The Trevor Project and the CDC indicate that suicide attempts among transgender and nonbinary youth increased approximately 72% between 2018 and 2022 in the first year after the adoption of state-level anti-transgender laws, a rise attributed to service denials, growth of accepted hate speech, and loss of affirming care protections.

Following the 2024 election and early 2025 executive actions by President Trump—such as rescinding healthcare nondiscrimination rules and pushing states to restrict gender–affirming care—the number of transgender youth reporting suicidal ideation and attempts continued to spike, with an anticipated 26% of trans students attempting suicide in 2025, according to a CDC–cited Human Rights Watch report. [Trevor Project, HRW, Healthpolicy]

The Trevor Project primarily measures changes in suicide attempts over time using large-scale, repeated surveys of LGBTQ youth, specifically transgender and nonbinary individuals, that ask about their mental health, experiences, and behaviors within the past 12 months. Extrapolating from these surveys, analysts estimate that in 2025 there were suicides among trans teens of between 1800 and 4000 as a result of a deteriorating policy environment.

Policy Shifts and Their Impact

Healthcare providers and mental health professionals documented sharp increases in crisis calls and emergency interventions for transgender individuals after federal orders restricting gender-affirming care and rescinding Title IX protections for trans students were announced. In clinical settings, therapists and physicians noted increased anxiety, depression, and substance relapse among their transgender clients, often coinciding with legal and political announcements.

Experts attribute the worsening outcomes not to inherent vulnerability but to policy-induced stress, stigma, and loss of social

and medical support systems. When federal guidance protecting transgender students and patients was withdrawn, many trans people lost trust in schools, doctors, and government institutions, compounding feelings of erasure and unsafety. The American Association of Suicidology and The Trevor Project both warned in 2025 that dismantling these protections could elevate suicide risk levels for years.

Overall, research converges on a clear pattern: the rollback of federal protections under Trump-era executive orders and policies has had a measurable and severe impact on transgender suicide rates, reinforcing evidence that affirming healthcare and anti-discrimination safeguards are protective against suicide risk.

Summary

While it is established that there is a measurable negative impact of these rollbacks of federal protections on teen mental health and suicide attempts—especially among vulnerable groups—a precise, numeric answer for "deaths from suicide as a direct result of trauma induced by Trump policies" is not currently available in public health or academic records. The best–established fact is a clear scientific consensus that suicide risk and attempts rise following adverse policy changes that target LGBTQ+ youth and reduce access to mental health resources.

7. Drug, Overdose & Crime-Related Mortality

Early composite estimates from addiction research groups and think tanks suggest that federal rollback of harm reduction could result in between 1,000 and 5,000 additional overdose deaths annually compared with 2024 baselines, depending on the severity of

Medicaid and program cuts. The surge is expected to widen into 2026 if proposed austerity measures and agency mergers proceed. [statnews]

Policy Shifts and Their Impact

Beginning in mid-2025, the Trump administration cut or withheld more than \$500 million in federal grants that support addiction treatment, harm reduction, and overdose prevention, including the Overdose to Action (OD2A) program managed by the CDC. The administration has also proposed eliminating \$26 billion more from addiction and overdose services by restructuring the Department of Health and Human Services into a new "Administration for a Healthy America," which would dissolve SAMHSA and parts of the CDC.

These fiscal contractions have had direct life-and-death consequences. One Drug Policy Alliance analysis estimated that cuts to medication-assisted treatment programs alone would deprive 156,000 people of access to opioid-use medications, potentially doubling overdose rates among those losing care. That estimate translates to roughly 1,000 additional overdose deaths each year just from treatment loss. [Drug Policy]

As of late 2025, analyses from multiple public health and policy sources indicate that President Trump's policy shifts—particularly those cutting harm reduction funding and emphasizing punitive drug measures—are contributing to a measurable rise in preventable overdose deaths.

The CDC reported that U.S. overdose deaths fell by 26% through February 2025 compared with the prior year—largely due to expanded harm reduction measures launched before the Trump administration's restructuring. [CDC]

However, researchers and advocacy groups warn that these gains are "reversing fast" as programs are now losing staff and closing clinics following the funding cuts. NPR and the Drug Policy Alliance both report early evidence of service suspensions across several states,

especially rural areas where Medicaid cuts hit hardest, increasing local fatal overdose spikes through mid-2025.

Trump's concurrent executive orders have emphasized punitive measures—expanding law enforcement efforts, tightening border controls, and threatening the death penalty for traffickers—while de-emphasizing harm reduction strategies such as syringe programs, naloxone distribution, and fentanyl test strips. Public health experts warn that these shifts move resources from evidence-based prevention toward incarceration, repeating patterns shown historically to increase long-term mortality among people with substance-use disorders.

Summary

The Trump administration's defunding of harm reduction and redirection toward punitive drug policies have already been linked to thousands of excess overdose deaths in 2025, reversing prior national progress in reducing drug fatalities.

8. Black Unemployment & Socio-Economic Mortality

Black unemployment has surged since early 2025, from about 6 percent to between 7.2 and 7.5 percent—the highest rate since 2021, reversing years of progress that had brought it near a record low of 4.7 percent in 2023.

These recent figures from multiple sources reinforce this trend:

 Bloomberg and The New York Times similarly report that the Black unemployment rate has increased by 1.5 to 1.6 percentage points since mid-2025, largely due to Trump administration workforce reductions and cuts to diversity programs. • The Economic Policy Institute confirms that the national Black unemployment rate stood at 6.2% in Q2 2025, about 1.8 times higher than the white unemployment rate. [EPI]

Policy Shifts and Their Impact

The sharp rise in unemployment amongst Black Americans is directly tied to Trump's federal workforce layoffs, tariff-related slowdowns, and the dismantling of diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI) programs, all of which have disproportionately affected Black workers—who make up nearly 19% of the federal workforce.

While there are no official or peer-reviewed estimates quantifying how many Black Americans have specifically *died* as a result of increased unemployment under President Trump's policies in 2025, several data points allow for a reasoned analysis connecting policy-driven unemployment spikes to elevated mortality risk::

- Multiple epidemiological studies estimate that each
 1-percentage-point rise in unemployment increases the all-cause mortality rate by approximately 6 percent in the following year.
- A 2023 NIH-backed study focusing on Black men found markedly higher mortality risks among the unemployed, driven by reduced healthcare access, chronic stress, and residential segregation.
- Data from the COVID-era unemployment surge suggested that unemployed Black people made up nearly one-fifth of excess deaths attributable to joblessness nationwide.

Assuming the Trump-era 2025 unemployment rise (roughly +1.3 to +1.5 percentage points among Black Americans) follows historical mortality-risk patterns, these changes could translate to a several-hundred to few-thousand increase in premature deaths annually among working-age Black adults. It's important to note that this is an inference based on known statistical relationships—not

directly measured deaths. No governmental or medical agency has released a confirmed death toll tied to the 2025 increase in Black unemployment. [PMC.NCBI.nlm.nih] Economists and public-health researchers caution that while job loss contributes to physical and mental health decline, attributing mortality directly to policy decisions requires multi-year epidemiological analysis that is not currently available.

Summary

Economists blame Trump's federal employment cuts and anti-DEI measures for worsening racial disparities in job loss. While higher unemployment is correlated with poorer health and life expectancy, no credible data show exactly how many "Black deaths" resulted from these policies directly in 2025. [ScienceDirect]

9. SNAP Cuts

SNAP, the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program, was created to prevent malnutrition and starvation, especially among children, to promote health and wellbeing, and to stimulate the economy. Today, the vast majority of the 42 million Americans participating in the SNAP program are children with working parents, as well as the elderly, the disabled, veterans, and active duty military.

A 2025 analysis by researchers from the University of Pennsylvania's Leonard Davis Institute and NYU Grossman School of Medicine estimated that provisions reducing or terminating SNAP under the *One Big Beautiful Bill Act* would cause approximately 93,000 premature deaths between now and 2039 due to rising food insecurity and related health crises. This projection applied mortality risk estimates from long-term studies comparing health outcomes of SNAP recipients versus similar nonrecipients. [UPenn]

Policy Shifts and Their Impact

At the time of writing, the ongoing federal shutdown has prevented the issuances of full November 2025 SNAP benefits —a disruption threatening about 42 million Americans. If this persists, nutrition experts warn that immediate health effects could include:

- Increased hospitalizations linked to uncontrolled chronic conditions such as diabetes and hypertension.
- Heightened rates of child malnutrition, developmental delay, and maternal health complications, particularly among low-income families with children under 5.
- Sharp rises in household food insufficiency, as observed when states ended emergency allotments in 2021 (a five-percentage-point increase in food insufficiency week to week).

Summary

It's been predicted that tens of thousands of lives could be lost over the long term due to rising food insecurity and related health crises if SNAP were permanently discontinued or significantly curtailed.

10. Reduction of health insurance coverage

The Trump administration anticipates cuts to ACA subsidies and to Medicaid. When ACA subsidies expire, approximately 5 million people could lose their coverage, resulting in an estimated 8,800 additional preventable deaths per year from ACA coverage losses alone. Broader estimates, factoring in both Medicaid and ACA Marketplace coverage changes, indicate that over 42,000 lives could be lost yearly from disruptions to both programs. [UPenn]

Policy Shifts and Their Impact

Average insurance premiums are expected to rise significantly due to the rollback of ACA (Affordable Care Act) subsidies. Industry analyses project that gross premiums for ACA marketplace plans will increase by a median of 18–20% in 2026, the largest hike since 2018. For those losing eligibility for enhanced subsidies, this results in a more than 75% increase in average out-of-pocket premium payments, with some analyses showing that premium payments for certain groups could more than double—an average increase of 114%, or over \$1,000 per year. [KFF]

These changes will impact consumers in the following ways:

- Millions of Americans will face increased premium costs beginning in 2026 unless Congress acts to extend enhanced subsidies.
- Premium payment caps (8.5% of income for many) will be eliminated for many middle-income households, causing a substantial spike in monthly contributions.
- Without subsidies, some older consumers could see premiums eat up more than half their household income.

Summary

Anticipated changes in Medicaid and ACA Marketplace coverage are expected to result in 42,000 lives lost yearly as millions of Americans will be unable to afford health insurance.

Conclusion

The evidence presented in this report reveals the extraordinary human cost of Trump-era policies in 2025, with over 300,000 documented deaths globally—and potentially more than 430,000—caused or hastened by executive actions and legislative shifts within a single year. From the collapse of public health infrastructure and Medicaid expansion rollbacks to USAID cuts that sever life-saving care for millions overseas, the repercussions have been swift, severe, and widely felt. The surge in deaths tied to reproductive restrictions, immigrant detention, punitive drug policy, and the erosion of transgender rights underscores the reality that policy is not simply rhetoric or political strategy—it is fate written in the lives and deaths of actual people.

If the administration's current trajectory persists, experts forecast excess mortality in America will remain elevated for years, while global repercussions could claim millions more lives by the end of the decade—particularly among the poorest and most vulnerable. Every estimate presented here describes a minimum, not a maximum; each figure stands for real individuals lost to reversible policy choices. These outcomes are neither random nor inevitable, but the result of deliberate governance decisions that have systematically dismantled essential health, welfare, and humanitarian systems.

History's record must reflect not just the tumult and spectacle of Trump's presidency, but the irreversible damage done to human life. The numbers tracked in this report—a conservative floor of over 300,000 deaths—represent a sobering reminder that behind every political headline, the policies we choose have a body count. As the U.S. moves forward, justice demands that we reckon with these casualties, remember their stories, and confront the urgent need to restore systems that protect life—rather than undermine it.